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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA cfégﬁeﬁ?f__ g@rag
5. D. gF F!.A: ¢

CASE NO.: 04-60573-CTV-MORENO/SIMONTON
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION,

Plaintiff,
Y.

MUTUAL BENEFITS CORP., et al,,

Defendants,
/

FINAL JUDGMENT OF PERMANENT INJUNCTION AND OTHER

RFELIEF AS TO DEFENDANT LESLIE STEINGER. RAINY CONSULTING
CORPORATION, AND TWIN GROVES INVESTMENTS

Plaintiff Securities and Exchange Commission (“Commission”) commenced this
action by filing its Complaint against, among others, Leslie Steinger (“Steinger”), Rainy
Consulting Corporatioﬁ ("Rainy”), and Twin Groves Investmenfs, Inc. (“Twin Groves”).
In its Complaint, the Commission sought a temporary restraining order and preliminary
and permanent injun'ctions to prohibit Steinger from violating Sections 5(a), S(¢) and
17(a) of the Securities gct of 1933 (“Securities Act”), Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Exchange Act”), and Rg}_c ll_Qb-S thereunder. The

Commission alsc sought an accounting, disgorgemsent, records preservation, expedited

discovery, an order temporarily freezing assets and an order imposing civil penalties -

pursuant to Section ZQ(d) of the Securitieé Act and Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act.

Stemger, Rainy, and Twin Groves, by the Consents affixed hereto, without
admi‘;‘ting or denying any of the allegations in the Commission's Complaint, except as to
the ju:isdicﬁoxi of the Court over thém and the subject matter of the Complaint, have

agreed to the entry of this Final Judgment of Permanent Injunction and Other Relief



(“Final Judgment”), waived findings of fact and conclusions of law; and waived any rnight

to appeal from this Final Judgment. This Court having accepted the Consents and this

Court having jurisdiction over Steinges, Rainy, and Twin Groves and the subject matter

of the Complaint, orders as follows:

1. PERMANENT INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

A. VIOLATION OF SECTIONS 5(a)
AND 5(c) OF THE SECURITIES ACT

IT IS ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Steinger, his officers, agents, servants,

employees, representatives, and all persons in active concert or participation with him, and

each of them, directly or indirectly, who receive actual natice of this Final Judgment, by

personal service or otherwise, are pemmanently restrained and emjoined from, directly or

indi:dctly:

@

®)

)

making use of the means or instmuments of transpottation or communication
in interstate commerce or of the mails to sell any security, in the form of

units, common stock, warrants or any other security, through the use or

" medivm of any prospectus or otherwise, unless and until a registration

statement is in effsct with the Comﬁssion asto il_lCh security,

carrying or causiag to be carried through the maﬁs or m interstate commerce,
by meavs or instruments of transportation, agy security, in the form of units,
common stock, warrants or any other secunty, for the purpose of sale or

delivery after sale, unless and until a registration staternent is in effect with

the Commission as fo such security; or

making use of any means or insteuments of transportation or commumication

in interstate commerce or of the meils to offer to sell or offer to buy any



security, in the form of units, common stock, warrants or any other security,
through the use or medium of any prospectus or otherwise, unless and uptil a
re;t‘gistratioz; statement is filed with the Commission as to such security, or
while a registration statement filed with the Commission as to such security
is the subject of a refusal order or stop order or (prior to the effective date of
the registration statement) any public proceeding or examination undc;-

Section 8 of the Securities Act, 15 U.8.C. § 77h,

in violation of Sections 3(a) and 5(c) of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 77e(a) and 77¢(c).

B. VIOLATION OF SECTION 17(a) OF THE SECURITIES ACT

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Steinger, his officers,

agents, servants, employzes, represenfatives, and all persons in -active comeert or

participation with him, and each of them, directly or indirectly, who receive actual notice of

this Final Judgment, by personal service or otherwise, are permanently restrained and

enjoined from, directly or indirectly, singly or in concert, as aiders and abettors or otherwise,

 in the offer or sale of any secuity, by the use of any means or instruments of transportation

or communication in inferstate commercs or by use of the mails:

()
)

employing any device, scheme or artifice to defrsfid;

obtaining money or property by means of any untrue statement of material
fact or omission to state any material fact necessary in order to make the
staternent made, in light of the circumstances under which it was made, not

misleading; or




(c) engaging in any transaction, practice or course of business which operates ot
would operate a5 a fraud or deceit upon purchasers or prospective purchasers

of any such sccurity,

~in violation of Sections 17(a)(1), 17(2)(2) and 17(a}(3) of the Secwrities Act, 15 US.C. §§

77q(aK1), 77q(a)(2) and 77q(a}(3).

C. VIOLATION OF SECTION 16(b) OF THE EXCHANGE ACT
AND RULE 10b-5 THEREUNDER

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Steinger, his officers,
agents, - servants, employees, mpreséntaﬁves, and all persons in active concert -or
participation with him, and each of them, directly or indirectly, whe receive actual notice of
this Final Judgment, by personal service or otherwise, are permancnﬂy restrained and
enjoined from, directly or indirectly, singly or in concert, as aiders and abettors or otherwise,
in comnection with the purchase or sale of any security, by the use o-f any meaps ot
instrumentality of interstate oommm-cé ar of the mails, or of any facility of any national

| securities exchange: |

(@)  employing any device, scheme or artifice to defraud;

(»)  making any untrue statements of materiz] fact or ¢ omitting to state 2 materjal
fact pecessary in erder, to make the stétemm;t; ma&e, in the light of the
circumstances under which they were made, not nﬁsleading; or

()  engaging in any act, practice or course of business which operates or would
operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person,

in violation of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5, 17
C.FR. § 240.10b-5, therenpder.




II. DISGORGEMENT AND CIVIL PENALTIES

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Steinger, Rainy, and
Twin Groves are jointly and severally liable for disgorgement of $8,828,000 apd

prejudgment interest of $162,000 (“the Funds™), representing alleged proceeds directly or

indirectly received in connection with the conduct alleged in the Complaint. Tn addition,
Steinger shall pay a civil money penalty of $500,000 pursuant to Section. 20(d) of the
Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. §774(d) (the “Funds”), for which lot execution issue.

Steinger, Rainy, and Twin Groves shall satisfy tﬁis disgorgemcn; obligation by
paying 34,500,000 within 15 days of the entry of this Final Judgment to the Clerk of this
Court, ‘together with a cover letter identifying Stejpger as a defendant in this action:
setting forth the title and civil action number of the action and the name of this Cot;ll't; and
specifying that payment is made pursuant to this Final Judgment. A second payment of
$4,500,000 shall be paid to Clerk of Court within one year of entry of the Final
fudgment, nsing the same cover Jetter instructions set forth above. Iuterest shall acerue
on the second 34,500,000 payment at a rate of interest set forth in Rule 600(b) of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice, 17 CER. § 201.600(b), from the date of entry of the
Final Judgment until such amount is paid in full. Steinger sHall satisfy his civil penalty
obligation by paying $500,000 to the Clerk of the Court on or before October 31, 2006,
usmg the same cover Jetter instructions set forth above. Steinper, Rainy, and Twin
Groves shall simultaneously transmit photocopies ¢f such payments and cover letter to
Alise M. Johnson, Esq., Securities and Ex;;hange Commission, 801 Brickell Avenue,

Miami, Florida, 33131, By making these payments, Steinger, Rainy, and Twin Groves

relinquish all legal and equitable right, title, and interest in such Funds, and no part of the




Funds shall be retwmned to them.

The Clerk shall deposit the Funds into an interest bearing account with the Court
Registry Iﬁvestment System ("CRIS") or any other type of interest bearing account that is
uttlized by the Court. These funds, together with any interest and income eamed thercon
(collectively, the ‘de”}, shall be held in the intersst bearing account until further order
of the Court. |

© In accordance with 28 U.S.C. § 1914 and the guidelies set by the Diretor of the
" Administrative Office of the United States Courts, the Clerk is directed, without further
order of this Com to deduct from the mcome earned on the money in the Fund a fee
equal to ten percent of the income eamed on the I:*'und. Such fee shall not exceed that
authorized by the Judicial Conference of the United States. The Commission may
propose a plan to distribute the Fund subject to the Court’s approval. Defendant shail pay
‘post-judgment interest on any. delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 USC § 1961.

Steinger agrees that he shall not‘ seek or accept, directly or indirectly,
reimbursement or indemnification from any source, including but not limited to paymaent
made pursuant to any msurance policy, with regard to any civil penalty amounts that
Steinger pays pursuant to the Finaf Judgment, régardlesf of whether such penalty
amounts or any part thereof are added to a distribution fund or otherwise used fof tl_1c
bcn;:ﬁt of investors. Steinger ﬁmher agrees that he shall not claim, assert, or apply for a-
tax daduc;tior-x or tax credit with regard to any federal, state, or iocal tax for any penaity
amounts that Steinger pays pursuant to the Fipal Judgment, regardless of whether such
penalty amounts or any part thereof are added to a distribution fund or otherwise used for

the benefit of investors.




If Steinger, Rainy, or Twin Groves f2il to make any single payment, or part of any
single payment, of the Funds within the precise time specified for such payment, the
installment payment terms of this Final Judgment shall no loniger apply, and the full
amount of the remaining unpaid disgorgement, prejudgment interest and civil penalty
shall be immediately due, owing and payable, plus pest-judgment interest on such
remaining unpaid amount calenlated at the rate of interest set forth in Rule 600(b) of the
Commission’s Rﬁles of Practice, 17 C.E.R. § 201.600(b), from the date of entry of the
Final Judgment until such amownt is paid in full.

The Commission may by motion propoée a plar to distribute the Funds subject'to
the Cﬁuﬁ’s approval. Sucha plan may provide that the Funds shall be distributed pursuant
to the Fair Fund provisions of Séction 308(z) of the Sarbames-Oxley Act of 2002.
Regardless of whether any such Fair Fund distribution is made, the $500,000 ordered to be
paid as a civil penalty pursuant to this Final Tudgment shall be treated as a penalty paid to
the government for all pﬁzposes, including all tax purposes. To preserve the deterrent effect
o_f the civil penalty, Steinger shall not, aﬂ;cr. offset or reduction in any Related investor
Action based on Steinger’s payment of disgorgement in this action, further benefit by offset
or reduction of any part of his payment of a civil penaliy in this‘ction ("Penalty Offset"). If
the court in any Related Tnvestor Action grants such a Peﬁalty Offset, Sﬁnger shall, within
30 days after entry of a fipal order grenting the Penalty Offset, notify the Commission's
counsel n. this action and pay the amount of the Penalty bf.fset to ‘L;ne United States Treasury
or to a Fair Fund, as the Conumission directs. Such a payment shall not be deemed an
additional civil pepalty and shall not be deemed to change the amount of the civil penalty

imposed in this Final Judgment. For purposes of this paragraph, a "Related Investor Action”




means a private damages action brought against Steinger by ar on behalf of one or more
investors based on suiistantialiy the same facts as alleged in the Complaint in this action.

ITI. INCORPORATION OF CONSENT

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that Steinger, Rainy, and
Twin Groves shall comply with the prnvisicns of the Consent, and that the Consent is
incorporated by reference into this Final Judgment as if fully set forfh herein.

iIV. RETENTION OF JURISDICTION

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that this Court will retain
jutisdiction over this matter and over Steinger, Rainy apd Twin Groves in order to
implement and carry out the terms of all Orders and Decress that may be entered and/or to
entertain any suitable application or motion for additional relief within the jurisdiction of
this Court, and will m.;dcr other relief that this Court deems appropriate under the

circumstances.

Y. ASSET FREEZE

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the asset fresze currently
in effect against Steinger, Rainy and Twin Groves as set forth, in this Court’s Orders of

May 4, 2004 and February 16, 2005, is vacated and set aside i all respects.

V1. RULE 54(b) CERTIFICATION
There being no jost reason for delay, pursuant to Rule 54(b} of the Federal Rules of

Civil Procedure, the Clerk js ordered fo enter this Final Judgment forthwith and without

firther notice.




" Copies to: Coupsel of Record

A

v
DONE AND ORDERED thisé day of w_‘;, Miami, Florida.

HONORABLE ¥ESTHICO MORENO
UNI{ED SPATES DISTRICT JUDGE

)




